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The historic cote nf Washington and Lee Universit& is situated along a
ridge which extends through the western edge of the town of Lexington.
‘The principal feature of this core is a range of brick buildings referred
to as the '"Colonnade", since the buildings are fronted variously with
columns, piers, and pilasters, giving the impression of a continuous
colonnade. In the center of the Colonnade is the oldest and largest
building of the group, Washington Hall - a three-story, temple-form
structure fronted by a provincial hexastyle Roman Doric portico. Washingto
Hall was erected in 1824; its present roofline and two-story flanking
wings were added in 1843. The octagonal Greek-Revival cupola, topped with
. wooden statue of George Washington was added in 1844, The statue, carved by
a local cabinet ‘maker, Matthew Kahle, is a fine example of American folk
art. Wasliington Hall's flanking wings, fronted with coupled Doric pilasterg,
link the building to two matching rectangular structures. The southern
building, Payne Hall, was erected in 1831, while its compliment, Robinson
Hall, was completed in 1843. Both buildings feature unpedimented hexastyle
porticoes with square piers and are crowned by shallow deck-on-hip roofs.
This complex of ante-bellum structures at one time contained nearly all the
institution's facilities, but it now houses only administrative offices,
faculty offices, and classrooms. All of the original interior fabric
of the buildings was replaced in 1936 during an extensive renovation.
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Aligned. with this central group are two additional buildings, npw,
considered part of the Colonnade. The south building, Newcomb-Hall, is a
late-nineteenth century structure, restyled in the twentieth century with
a Doric portico to conform with the earlier buildings. The three-story
building on the north, Tucker Hall, was erected in 1935, -in the Doric
temple-form to house the Law School.

" Farther down the hill, towards the east, and facing Washington Hall on

" axis-is the famous Lee Chapel, built under the direction of Robert E,
Lee in 1868. 1In 1870, this small brick building, with its simplified

- Romanesque elements, became the final ‘resting place of the institution's
most famous president. ' o
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Beyond each of the terminal buildings of the Colonnade, and halfway down

the hill is a pair of faculty dwellings. All four houses were completed

in 1843 according to similar plans, with two-story temple forms and one-

story wings, although the outermost houses have shallow hipped roofs, while
" the remaining two have pedimented roofs. Each of the tetrastyle porticoes

on the houses displays the same provincal Roman Doric order found on

Washington Hall.

South of the southernmost faculty house, is a rambling two-story brick
house with a hipped roof, built in 1869 as the president's house, and
first occupied by Robert E, Lee.

The collection of academic, religious, and residential buildings here
described constitute the historic core of Washington and Lee Univ?rsity.
Other structures, mostly Georgian Revival-style, have been built in the

vicinity during the present centur{, but they are discreetly placed and
detract little from the visual quality of the area.
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The historic core of Washington and Lee University is composed of a collectio
bf architecturally harmonious and spatially related neo-classical buildings
that together form one of the most dignified and beautiful college campuses
in the nation. The central and most significant element of this complex, the
'Colonnade"”, along with the flanking faculty residences, gives the impression
pf being the product of a single architectural concept, but in reality this
splendid succession of columned and pilastered buildings is an evolutionary
broduct of a building program, extending over nearly one hundred and fifty
years. As the school grew, its administrators and builders successfully used
this growth as a means to enhance the visual unity of the institution with-
out falling into monotony. The first buildings erected in 1803 by what was
then Washington College, have long since disappeared. It is, however, the
oldest of the existing buildings, Washington Hall, erected in 1824, which
sets the architectural tone of the campus. Its builder-architect, John
Jordan, was a self taught designer of much ability. Jordan was able to
transform the prewvailing architectural fashion of the time into a sturdy,
local idiom. The principal departures at Washington and Lee from Jordan's
simple classicism - the Lee Chapel and the President's House = do not detrac
from the unity of the area, but serve as interesting foils to it.

While the modern university plant extends well beyond the historic core,

the ante bellum buildings have remained the visual symbol and psychological
heart of this venerable institution. The significance of the complex to
nineteenth-century American architectural development was perhaps best
expressed by Talbot Hamlin when he wrote: "No more impressive expression
of the educational ideals of the time could be imagined than this Classic
group, its pediment and orders seen through embowering trees, over swelling
American lawns, its cupola crowned with the image of the Pater Patriae".
Even though the individual buildings that make up Washington and Lee have
gone through extensive changes in the course of their organic growth and
development the integrity of the University complex as a whole has survived.
The Lee Chapel was designated a National Historic Landmark in 1961 under the
theme study of the Civil War. The evaluation of National significance
should be extended to include all of the historic core of the University.
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